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for Preliminary Ruling on 
Admissibility of Evidence 

(Business Records) 

22 June 2012 

The prosecution in the above case respectfully requests that this Court admit into evidence the 
following authenticated business records in advance of trial: the Accused's Official Military 
Personnel File (OMPF) from Human Resources Command (HRC); the Accused's unit Soldier 
Management Individual File (SMIF); the United States Office of Personnel Management (OPM) 
investigation and supporting documents for the Accused; Army Training Requirement and 
Resources System (ATRRS) records; 35F10 AIT Program of lnstruction (POI), lesson plans, and 
Student Evaluation Plan; the Department of Defense (DoD) IA Information Assurance (IA) 
version 7 (dated October 2008) and version 8 (dated October 2009); IA screenshot; IA VTC 
screenshot; Joint Asset Movement Management System (JAMMS) records for the Accused; 
Sensitive Compartmented Information (SCI) Packet for the Accused; and a Distributed Common 
Ground System-Army (DCGS-A) Certificate of Networthiness (CON) list. The prosecution 
seeks said relief to provide improved predictability and efficiency to the proceedings. 

This motion also serves as notice to the defense that the government intends on offering these 
documents as evidence under Military Rule of Evidence (MRE) 902(11). 

BURDEN OF PERSUASION AND BURDEN OF PROOF 

The burden of proof on any factual issue, the resolution of which is necessary to decide a 
motion, shall be by preponderance of the evidence. RCM 905(c)(1). The burden of persuasion 
on any factual issue, the resolution of which is necessary to decide a motion, shall be on the 
moving party. RCM 905(c)(2). The prosecution has the burden of persuasion as the moving 
party. 

FACTS 

On 26 September 2007, the Accused enlisted in the Army as an E-1 for four ( 4) years Active 
Duty and four (4) years Reserve time. His commitment began on 2 October 2007 and his 
Military Occupational Specialty (MOS) was a 35F Intelligence Analyst. A copy of his 
Enlistment/Reenlistment Document is maintained in his OMPF. See Enclosure 1. 

On 26 September 2007, the Accused completed a Security Clearance Application, a copy of 
which is maintained in the Accused's local unit file. See Enclosure 2. There was missing 
information noted on the form. On 2 October 2007, the Accused completed another Security 
Clearance Application, a copy of which is maintained in his OMPF. See Enclosure 1. 



· On 2 October 2007, the Accused received orders to report to Fort Leonard Wood, Missouri on 
2 October 2007. A copy of the orders is maintained in the Accused's local unit file. See 
Enclosure 2. 

On 15 January 2008, OPM closed their background investigation on the Accused. See 
Enclosure 3. 

The Accused signed a Classified Information Nondisclosure Agreement (NDA) on 7 April 
2008, while at Fort Huachuca, Arizona. A copy of the NDA is maintained in his OMPF. See 
Enclosure 1. 

From 11 April 2008 to 14 August 2008, the Accused attended 35F Advanced Individual 
Training (AIT). See Enclosure 4. At AIT, the Accused was taught how to be an intelligence 
analyst for the Army. Training at AIT included how to properly mark and handle classified 
information, the meaning of the various classifications, how to effectively use the internet, the 
value of the internet in research and collection, and operational security and the enemy's use of 
the internet. See Enclosures 5 and 6. 

On 14 August 2008, the Accused left AIT at Fort Huachuca and, on 27 August 2008, reported 
to his first unit (2-10 Mountain, Fort Drum, New York). His MOS was 35F. A copy of his 
orders and pass form are maintained in the Accused's individual unit file. The Accused was 
assigned to this unit and deployed to Iraq when the charged misconduct occurred. See Enclosure 
2. 

On 5 September 2008, the Accused completed his required annual IA training. The training is 
administered by the IA Branch and requires the individual to pass a test. See Enclosures 7, 8 and 
10. 

On 17 September 2008, the Accused signed another Classified Information NDA. See 
Enclosure 14. 

On 21 January 2009, the Accused was nominated by his Brigade Security Manager for SCI 
Access. The Accused signed a SCI Pre-Indoctrination Screening Interview form on 22 January 
2008 and answered "no" to all of the questions asked. The Accused also signed an SCI Security 
Awareness and Defense Travel Briefing, a Pre-Nondisclosure Execution Briefing, a Personal 
Attestation upon the Granting of Security Access, an SCI NDA, an addendum to the NDA, and 
an acknowledgment of Special Access Program briefings on 22 January 2009. On 28 January 
2009, the Accused signed another SCI NDA. See Enclosure 14. 

Movement reports are maintained on Soldiers on a system called JAMMS as they enter and 
leave theater. On 12 October 2009, the Accused arrived in Kuwait, and on 28 October 2009, the 
Accused arrived in Iraq. See Enclosure 11. 
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On 31 October 2009, the Accused completed his required annual IA training. The training is 
administered by the IA Branch and requires the individual to pass a test. See Enclosures 8 and 
10. 

On 22 January 2010, the Accused left Iraq on Environmental Morale Leave (EML); on 11 
February 2010, the Accused arrived back in Iraq; and on 14 February 2010, the Accused arrived 
back at FOB Hammer. See Enclosure 11. The Government has alleged misconduct that 
occurred prior to the Accused leaving Iraq on EML, misconduct that occurred while the Accused 
was in the United States, and misconduct that occurred beginning almost immediately after the 
Accused arrived back in Iraq. See Charge Sheet. 

While in Iraq, the Accused was an intelligence analyst and worked on the DCGS-A system. 
See Enclosure 12. The DCGS-A system is a type of computer workstation used by intelligence 
analysts that is connected to the Secret Internet Protocol Router Network (SIPRNET). See 

Enclosure 13. The DCGS-A CON List is a list of what software can be loaded on the DCGS-A 
computer. The list also refers to AR 25-2. See Enclosure 15. 

On 22 April 2010, the Accused began the 2010 annual U.S. Army Information Assurance 
Virtual Training Classroom (IA VTC) that Soldiers and Department of the Army employees 
utilize to complete non-mandatory IA training. See Enclosures 9 and 10. 

On 24 May 2010, the Accused received an Article 15 for punching SPC Jihrleah Showman in 
the face with a closed fist on 8 May 2010. A copy of the Article 15 is maintained in the 
Accused's local unit file. See Enclosure 2. Because of this misconduct, the Accused was 
removed from the 2-10 Mountain Sensitive Compartmented Information Facility (SCIF) and 
assigned to work in the supply room. The prosecution has charged the Accused with stealing or 
converting the United States Forces-Iraq (USF-I) Global Address List (GAL) after he was 
removed from the SCIF. See Charge Sheet. 

On 29 May 2010, the Accused was ordered into confinement by his company commander, 
CPT . A copy of the Confinement Order and supporting documentation is maintained 
in the Accused's local unit file. See Enclosure 2. 

On 30 May 2010, the Accused left Iraq. See Enclosure 11. 

On 3 February 2012, the following charges were referred against the Accused: one 
specification of violating Article 104, aiding the enemy; one specification of violating Article 
134, for wrongfully and wantonly causing to be published on the internet intelligence belonging 
to the United States government, having knowledge that intelligence published on the internet is 
accessible to the enemy; eight specifications of violating Article 134 for willfully communicating 
or transmitting national defense information to a person not entitled to receive it, in violation of 
18 USC§ 793(e); two specifications of violating Article 134 for exceeding authorized access on 
a SIPRNET computer, in violation of 18 USC§ 1030(a)(1); five specifications of violating 
Article 134 for stealing or converting Government property, in violation of 18 USC § 641; and 
five specifications alleging misconduct in violation of Article 92,includingspecifications alleging 
that the accused violated Army Regulation 25-2 by adding unauthorized software to a SIPRNET 
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computer and using an information system in a manner other than its intended purpose. See 
Charge Sheet. 

WITNESSES/EVIDENCE 

The prosecution requests you consider the following: 
Charge Sheet 
Listed Enclosures 

LEGAL AUTHORITY AND ARGUMENT 

The trial judge has discretion as to the manner in which she makes preliminary determinatipns 
concerning the admissibility of evidence. MRE 104; see U.S. v. Blanchard, 48 M.J. 306 
(C.A.A.F. 1998). This judicial discretion includes "preadmitting" evidence provided it is 
relevant and no other rule prohibits its admission. See, e.g., U.S. v. Bradford, 68 M.J. 371 
(C.A.A.F. 2010). Where, as here, there is no question as to the admissibility of the evidence, the 
enclosed records should be preadmitted to provide predictability to both parties and to dispose of 
what amounts to administrative matters outside the presence of the panel (assuming there is a 
panel). 

I. THE RECORDS ARE RELEVANT. 

Evidence that has a tendency to make a fact of consequence more or less probable than it 
would be without the evidence is relevant. MRE 401. All relevant evidence is generally 
admissible. MRE 402. 

A. OMPF 

The Accused's OMPF records are relevant on their face to all charges and specifications. The 
personnel records create the complete picture of the Accused's time as a Soldier. Specifically, 
his Enlistment/Reenlistment Document shows how long he is been in the military and is relevant 
to his training and experience as a Soldier. The Accused's completion of the 2 October 2007 
Security Clearance Application, at least a second one, shows his familiarity with the process as 
well as the seriousness and importance of not omitting information required to complete the form 
and the background check. The NDA signed by the Accused on 7 April 2008, while at Fort 
Huachuca, Arizona, is evidence of his knowledge of what can and cannot be disclosed to the 
public and his familiarity with several of the charged offenses which are spelled out in the NDA. 

The file is also generally relevant to provide a complete picture of the Accused's career, 
including a time line of relevant training and education events for the trier of fact, and the above 
information is specifically relevant to the scienter required for the Accused to have knowingly 
committed the offenses. 

B. SMIF 

The Accused's SMIF records are relevant on their face to all charges and specifications. The 
personnel records create the complete picture of the Accused's time as a Soldier. Specifically, 
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the Accused's completion of the 26 September 2007 Security Clearance Application shows his 
introduction to the security clearance process and its rules and regulations. The Accused's 
orders to basic training on 2 October 2007 show his entry into the military and the beginning of a 
litany of training. The Accused's subsequent orders show that he went to Fort Huachuca, 
Arizona for AIT and left on 14 August 2008 to report to his unit, 2-10 Mountain, Fort Drum, 
New York on 27 August 2008. His MOS was 35F; therefore, he was a trained intelligence 
analyst. The Article 15 precipitated the Accused being removed from the SCIF and reassigned to 
the supply room where he continued his misconduct by stealing the USF-I GAL. See Charge 
Sheet. Finally, the 29 May 2010 confinement order and supporting documentation show when 
the Accused was discovered and the misconduct ended. 

The file is generally relevant to show a timeline of the Accused's career. The Accused's 
training and security clearance application are specifically relevant to the scienter required for 
the Accused to have knowingly committed the offenses. The Article 15 also reveals why the 
Accused was removed from the SCIF and sent to work in the supply room and provides a 
timeline which corresponds to misconduct committed from computers in the supply room. The 
confinement order shows a timeline of the Accused's access to information and why the 
information harvesting stopped on approximately 29 May 2010. 

C. OPM Investigation and Supporting Documents 

The OPM information is relevant to all charges and specifications. It shows that the Accused 
went through the entire security clearance process and the U.S. Government determined, based 
on his answers, that he was worthy of the special trust instilled in someone who is granted a 
security clearance. 

D. ATRRS 

The A TTRS records are relevant on their face to all charges and specifications. They 
establish when the Accused attended AIT at Fort Huachuca. The ATRRS records also list the 
course title ("intelligence analyst") for the training attended at Fort Huachuca. In short, the 
training records provide more information on the timeline of the Accused's career and prove that 
the Accused attended and completed training relevant to the charges and specifications in this 
case. 

E. AIT Records (POI, Lesson Plans, and SEP) 

The Accused's AIT records are relevant on their face to all charges and specifications. They 
show when and how the Accused was trained. Specifically, the program of instruction for course 
243-35F10, Version 1 shows the training that 35F AIT Soldiers received, including the course 
lesson plan, the content of the lectures and the PowerPoints, the length of time each lecture 
should take, the learning objectives, and the evaluations or assignments given to Soldiers. The 
program of instruction reveals that during AIT, students were instructed on how to properly mark 
and handle classified information, the meaning of the various classifications, how to effectively 
use the internet, the value of the internet in research and collection, and operational security and 
the enemy's use of the internet. Specifically, Slide 73 of the Powerpoint presentation, entitled 
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Prevent Disclosure, asks and responds to the following, "Would you give this information to a 
terrorist? If the answer is "no," DON'T PUT IT ON THE WEB!!!" The student evaluation plan 
shows the lesson plans, the instruction, and performance objectives, as well as the requirements 
for the course examinations. 

The file is generally relevant to show a timeline of the Accused's AIT training and is 
particularly relevant as proof that the Accused knowingly committed the offenses. 

F. DoD IA Awareness Training 

The IA certifications and training are relevant to all charges and specifications. The training 
teaches Soldiers and DA civilians the importance of maintaining the integrity of the Army 
systems. The 5 September 2008 and 31 October 2009 training confirmations reveal that the 
Accused did receive the required training, and the IA VTC screenshot confirms that the Accused 
at least started additional non-required training on 22 April 2010. IA training was yet another 
opportunity the U.S. Army took to train the Accused on proper handling of information and the 
proper use of information systems, and again, provides evidence that the Accused had 
knowledge of information assurance principles. In short, all of the alleged misconduct in this 
case is related in some way to the Accused's use of computers or information systems. See 
Charge Sheet. 

G. JAMMS Movement Report 

The Accused's JAMMS Movement Report is relevant because it shows when the Accused 
arrived in Iraq for his deployment, when the Accused was on EML from Iraq, when the Accused 
returned from EML, and when the Accused left Iraq. The JAMMS report is a definitive timeline 
of the Accused's travel that provides compelling evidence of the Accused's location during time 
periods relevant to the charges. See Charge Sheet. 

H. SCI Indoctrination Packet 

The Indoctrination Packet is relevant to the charges relating to the compromise of classified 
information. The Indoctrination Packet shows that beginning on 17 September 2008, the 
Accused again was informed of the importance of protecting classified information and in 
particular was told that unauthorized disclosure of classified information may constitute a 
violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 641 and 793(e). On 21 January 2009, the Accused was nominated by 
his Brigade Security Manager for SCI Access. After that, the Accused signed numerous forms 
which asked additional background questions and ensured that the signatory was aware of the 
importance of protecting classified information and the criminal liabilities involved in disclosing 
that information to unauthorized individuals. See Enclosure 14. Through eleven different 
signatures and sixteen different initials, the SCI Packet and supporting documentation show the 
Accused received extensive information and knew the extent of his misconduct when he 
compromised the charged classified information. See Charge Sheet. 

I. DCGS-A CON List 
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The DCGS-A CON list is relevant to the Article 92 violations alleging that the Accused added 
unauthorized software to a SIPRNET computer. Specifically, the United States must prove that 
W get was unauthorized software when the Accused added it to his work computers on the dates 
specified on the Charge Sheet. The DCGS-A CON list is proof that Wget was not certified as 
"networthy" by the Army. 

II. THE RECORDS ARE NOT EXCLUDABLE AS HEARSAY BECAUSE THEY ARE 
RECORDS OF REGULARLY CONDUCTED ACTIVITY. 

Hearsay is an out-of-court statement, written or oral, offered for the truth of the matter 
asserted. MRE 801(c). Hearsay is often excluded as evidence during trial due to doubts of the 
evidence's reliability. The general prohibition of hearsay evidence has several exceptions, 
including an exception under MRE 803(6) for "records of regularly conducted activity" as they 
are inferentially reliable. See MRE 803(6). "Records of regularly conducted activity" is defined 
as the following: 

MRE 803(6). 

[a] memorandum, report, record, or data compilation, in any form, 
of acts, events, conditions, opinions, or diagnoses, made at or near 
the time by, or from information transmitted by, a person with 
knowledge, if kept in the course of a regularly conducted business 
activity, and if it was the regular practice of that business activity 
to make the memorandum, report, record, or data compilation, all 
as shown by the testimony of the custodian or other qualified 
witness, or by certification that complies with Mil. R. Evid. 
902(11) or any other statute permitting certification in a criminal 
proceeding in a court of the United States, unless the source of the 
information or the method or circumstances or preparation lack 
trustworthiness. 

Several of the records are specifically cited in the rule as being examples of information 
normally admissible as a record of regularly conducted activity, such as enlistment papers, 
service records, and unit personnel diaries. MRE 803(6). All enclosed records are records of 
regularly conducted activity, and there is no evidence that any of the records lack 
trustworthiness. All enclosed records are, therefore, admissible under MRE 803(6) as exceptions 
to hearsay. In addition, all enclosed records are accompanied by attestations made in accordance 
with MRE 902(11 ), authenticating them as business records. 

III. THE RECORDS ARE AUTHENTIC. 

In addition to being relevant, evidence must also be authentic to be admissible. See MRE 
901(a). "[A]dmissibility is satisfied by evidence sufficient to support a finding that the matter in 
question is what its proponent claims." MRE 901(a). Some evidence, however, is self
authenticating and does not require "[ e ]xtrinsic evidence of authenticity as a condition precedent 
to admissibility." MRE 902. "Certified domestic records of regularly conducted activity" fall 
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under this exception. MRE 902(11 ). Pursuant to MRE 902(11 ), extrinsic evidence of 
authenticity as a condition precedent to admissibility is not required with respect to certified 
domestic records of a regularly conducted activity when: 

MRE 902(11). 

[t]he original or a duplicate of a document or record of regularly 
conducted activity that would be admissible under Mil R. Evid. 
803(6) if accompanied by a written declaration of its custodian or 
other qualified person, in a manner complying with any Act of 
Congress or rule prescribed by the Supreme Court pursuant to 
statutory authority certifying that the record (A) was made at or 
near the time of the occurrence of the matters set forth by, or from 
information transmitted by, a person with knowledge of those 
matters; (B) was kept in the course of the regularly conducted 
activity; and (C) was made by the regularly conducted activity as a 
regular practice. 

The following attestations were made in accordance with MRE 902(11): 

On 18 April 2012, Mr. , HR Assistant, iPerms Support Team, Army 
Soldier Records Branch, U.S. Army Human Resources Command, as custodian of Soldier OMPF 
records, certified all documents filed in the Accused's OMPF. 

On 24 April 2011, CPT  as Company Commander of HHC, 2d Brigade 
Combat Team, lOth Mountain Division (Light), Fort Drum, NY, attested to the authenticity of 
the unit Soldier Management Individual File (SMIF) of the Accused (144 pages). 

On 17 April 2012, Ms.  Supervisory FOI/PA Specialist, attested to the 
authenticity of the Single Scope Background Investigation and Entrance National Agency Check 
Investigation on the Accused. 

On 11 June 2012, Mr. , Chief, Training Division, Headquarters, DA G-1, 
attested to the authenticity of ATRRS records, specifically the "Student Portal Reservation by 
Student Function (Training History All) Manning, Bradley (9504)" and "lET Trainee Processing, 
Manning, Bradley (9504)." 

On 13 July 2011, Ms. , Management Analyst, Defense Information System 
Agency (DISA), attested to the authenticity of the DoD IA Awareness version 7 (dated October 
2008) and the DoD IA Awareness version 8 (dated October 2009). 

On 31 January 2012, Mr. , IT Director, Willco Technologies, Inc., as 
custodian of Army Training and Certification Tracking System, attested to the authenticity of the 
Accused's Army training and certification screenshots. 
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On 27 January 2012, Mr. , Director of Development, attested to the authenticity of 
an IA Virtual Training screenshot entitled "IA Virtual Training. pdf (1 Page)." 

On 15 February 2012, Ms. , SAMD Clerk, US ARCENT G1 SAMD Section, 
attested to the authenticity of the JAMMS records pertaining to the Accused as of 15 February 
2012. 

On 13 February 2012, CW3 , 35F10 Committee Chief, attested to the 
authenticity of the program of instruction and lesson plan for the Intelligence Analyst Course, 
specifically a DVD-R containing two RTF Files named "243-35F10 Ver1 POI.RTF" and "243-
35F10 Verl Lesson Plans.rtf." 

On 6 February 2012, CW3 , 35F10 Committee Chief, attested to the 
authenticity of the student evaluation plan for the 35F10 Intelligence Analyst Course, 
specifically the "35F10 Student Evaluation Plan (SEP)." 

On 8 February 2012, Ms. , SCI Program Manager, attested to the authenticity of 
all documents filed in the Accused's SCI Indoctrination packet, specifically "INDOC
COMINT- 29 Jan 10.pdf (1 Page)"; "JCAVS Report- 26 May 2010.pdf (2 pages)"; and "SCI 
Packet- Jan 2009.pdf (22 pages)." 

On 11 April 2012, Ms. , Program Manager, DCGS-A Configuration 
Management, attested to the authenticity of the Version Description Document (VDD) for the 
Basic Analyst Laptop (BAL), Distributed Common Ground Systems-Army, Software Version 
3.1 Patch 3 (DCGS-A V3.1 P3), dated 1 October 2009, title "DCGS-
A_ V3.1_P3_BAL_ VDD _149015_Rev1_1_0ct_09.doc (14 pages)." 

Written declarations made in accordance with MRE 902(11) accompany all the enclosed files; 
therefore, all the records are properly authenticated. 

IV. THE DUPLICATE RECORDS ARE ADMISSIBLE TO THE SAME EXTENT AS AN 
ORIGINAL 

"A duplicate is admissible to the same extent as an original unless (1) a genuine question is 
raised as to the authenticity of the original, or (2) in the circumstances it would be unfair to admit 
the duplicate in lieu of the original." MRE 1 003. A duplicate is defined as "a counterpart 
produced by the same impression as the original, or from the same matrix, or by means of 
photography, including enlargements and miniatures, or by mechanical or electronic rerecording, 
or by chemical reproduction, or by other equivalent techniques which accurately reproduce the 
original. MRE 1001 ( 4). The contents of an official record, . . .  including data compilations in 
any form, if otherwise admissible, may be proved by copy, certified as correct or attested to in 
accordance with Mil. R. Evid. 902 or testified to be correct by a witness who has compared it 
with the original. If a copy which complies with the foregoing cannot be obtained by the 
exercise of reasonable diligence, then other evidence of the contents may be given. MRE 1005. 
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In the certifications for all of the enclosed records, the records custodian specifically states 
that the records are true and accurate or complete copies of the originals. There is no evidence 
that any of the original documentation may not be authentic, nor is there any circumstance 
present which would make the admission of a duplicate in lieu of the original unfair. The 
enclosures include official records, and all of them are business records. The duplicates, 
therefore, are admissible to the same extent as the originals. 

V. THE PROBATIVE VALUE OF THE RECORDS IS NOT SUBSTANTIALLY 
OUTWEIGHED BY UNFAIR PREJUDICE. 

Courts may exclude relevant evidence if its probative value is substantially outweighed by 
the danger of unfair prejudice, confusion, or waste of time. MRE 403. Prejudice alone is not 
sufficient to warrant exclusion. Virtually all evidence is prejudicial to one party or another. To 
justify exclusion the prejudice must be unfair. United States v. Candelaria-Silva, 162 F.3d 698, 
705 (1st Cir. 1998). 

As stated in Section I, all the evidence is relevant to the charged offenses. The OMPF, the 
SMIF, and JAMMS report establish a timeline of the Accused's career and when he was present 
in Iraq. His security clearance information shows that he applied for and was granted clearance 
based on his representations. The OMPF, SCI Packet, DoD lA Training, ATRRS, and AIT 
Records all show how extensively the Accused was trained on Information Assurance, 
INFOSEC, and OPSEC. The DCGS-A CON list shows that the Accused installed software on 
his computer that he was not allowed to install in violation of AR 25-2. The knowledge instilled 
by these various training tools establishes that the Accused knew what he was doing was wrong 
and that if transmitted information to Wikileaks, it would end up in the hands of the enemy. 

The evidence is prejudicial to the Accused in that it builds the case against him and shows his 
awareness of what he was doing; however, it is not unfairly prejudicial. All of the records are 
relevant to the Accused and the charged offenses and are a direct result of the Accused's actions. 
The records help establish a timeline to make the events clear to the factfinder and they assist in 
proving the scienter required for the offenses. 

CONCLUSION 

Based upon the requirements for admissibility of evidence in accordance with MRE 104, 
MRE 401, MRE 402, MRE 403, MRE 803(6), and MRE 902(11), the Government respectfully 
moves this court, pursuant to RCM 906(13), to pre-admit the Accused's OMPF from HRC; the 
Accused's SMIF; JAMMS records; SCI Packet; DoD lA Awareness version 7 (dated October 
2008); DoD lA Awareness version 8 (dated October 2009); Army Training and Certification 
screenshot; 243-35F10 Ver 1 POI RTF; 243-35F10 Ver 1 lesson plans; 35F10 Student 
Evaluation Plan as they are on their face relevant to the charges at issue and will provide 
improved predictability and efficiency to the proceedings. 
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ANGEL M. OVERGAARD 
CPT, JA 
Assistant Trial Counsel 

I certify that I served or caused to be served a true copy of the above on Defense Counsel via 
electronic mail, on 22 June 2012. 

15 Enclosures 

ANGEL M. OVERGAARD 
CPT, JA 
Assistant Trial Counsel 

1. Accused's OMPF from HRC w/ attestation 
2. Accused's SMIF w/ attestation 
3. OPM Investigation and Supporting Documents w/ attestation 
4. ATRRS records w/ attestation 
5. 35F10 AIT POI and Lesson Plan w/ attestation 
6. 35F10 AIT Student Evaluation Plan w/ attestation 
7. DoD IA Awareness version 7 (dated October 2008) and version 8 (dated October 2009) w/ 
attestation 
8. IA Screenshot w/ attestation 
9. IA VTC Screenshot w/ attestation 
10. AIR, SA , dated 21 Jan 11 
11. JAMMS records w/ attestation 
12. AIR, SA , dated 31 Aug 10 
13. DCGS-A Information Sheet 
14. SCI Packet w/ attestation 
15. DCGS-A CON List w/attestation 
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